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PEOPLE AND PLACES

Churches Reborn
By Michael Kenney

The pending conversion of Blessed Sacrament Church in Cambridgeport to
residential use will be the latésand largest entry in a history of the reuse

of Cambridgeds

churches,

practice that goes back to the late 18th century.

chapel s,

Holden Chapel shortly after it was built in 1742. Harvard Yard is to

the left, the Cambridge Common to the right.

Photo Cambridge Historical Society Archives

The earliest reugethat of Holden Chapel in Harvard Yd&rdcame just 24 years
after it was built in 1742. It was displaced as a place for religious services in
1766, with the building of Harvard Hall. After serving as a barracks during the
Revolution, it became the first quarters of the Harvard Medical School in 1782.

Choral groups rehearse there now, and with a distinctive Baroque cartouche

ar

above the entrance, it is also the site of student chamber music recitals during

Harvardobés ArtsFi

r st

festi

val s.

The most spectacular reuse is that of the Old Cambridge Baptist Church in Har-
vard Square, a Gothic Revival structure built in 18®70. Long known as a
home for political and social activists, its sanctuary and church hall were leased

(continued on page 6)
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FROMTHE PRESIDENT

In Praise of VVolunteers

It has been said that the United States is a
nation of volunteers, that there are a multi-
tude of nonprofit organizations run either
wholly or in part by people who contribute
their time and talent. CHS and other such
community organizations could scarcely
stay in existence without the efforts of vol-
unteers.

| would like at this time to thank those in-
dividuals who freely give of their time to
make CHS the success that it is. First and
foremost, of course, are the elected coun-
cilors and advisors, who contribute to the
council and committee meetings, assist at
various events, and are available for advice
and counsel.

But there are many others whose hames do
not appear on the CHS masthead that | now
want to recognize for their efforts on be-
half of the Society.
tired journalist, writes articles for our
newsletter (see pages 5, 8, 9), assists at
events, and has begun to answer research
inquiries. Our former research docent,
Brian Youmans, recently moved to Califor-
nia, and we are most grateful for his years
of service.

The Collections Committee benefits from
the talents of Renny Little, Marilee Meyer,
and Susan Adams Taylor. They were tre-
mendously helpful in the recent process of
identifying the provenance and value of the
Societybds furniture

Serving on the Program Committee are
Jennifer Hanse and Jinny Nathans. Jenni-
fer, a member for several years, should be
particularly recognized for organizing our
April program on Club 47. Jinny joined the
committee this year and has already made
numerous contributions through her vast
knowledge of Cambridge and her connec-
tions to the community.

a

The Newetowne Chroniclg/

The Publications Committee benefits from
the efforts of Michael Kenney, a journalist

who regularly contributes feature stories to
the newsletter (see page 1).

On the Finance Committee, Bill Truslow
and Peter Winn have contributed their time
and knowledge for many years.

Chris Lenney, who spent two semesters
with us as an archives intern from Sim-
mons College, has now become a volunteer
who will continue to bring his expertise to
the processing of our archival collections.

Finally, I want to thank Annette LaMond
and the members of the Cambridge Plant
and Garden Club who maintain and im-
prove the gardens and landscape of the
HooperLeeNichols House.

Ted Hansen

Thel ma O6Bri en, a re

CHS centennial book to be
published in 2006

Due to the need to take more time
with the details of book production,
we are postponing the publication of
our centennial volumeZambridge
in the 20th Century: A City's Life
and Times, éited by Daphne Abee].
The manuscript is complete and all
the illustrations have been submit-
ted. Details will be announced as the
final publication schedule becomes
available.

We are grateful to the Cambridge
Savings Bank for underwriting the
production of our centennial book.

A puunvauull Ul uic valliviiuyc 1 iwiival ouvicLy
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FROM THE DIRECTOR Perhaps of greater concern is that our location
What 0s Br at t | eleadSthe pesgmgortihat (e>eyety s Pt 0
) marily interested in the history of only Old

Do with It? Cambridge.

The location of the Cambridge Historical Soci- ~ To be sure, the Society was founded by a

ety in the Hoopet ee-Nichols House on Brat- group of residents who were devoted to docu-
tle Street would seem to be fortuitous. In real- ~ menting the history of Old Cambridge. That
ity, our prestigious location has pluses and mi- ~ harrow focus has long since been abandoned,
nuses with respect to the image of the Society but the taint of exclusivity remains. We are

in the community. working hard to change that image through

programs and publications that explore all the
neighborhoods in the city and the cultural di-
versity of our residents. We want to do more
outreach, but weodre | imite
budget. You can help by contacting us if you
would like to organize a program or donate a

B e collection (even a single photograph) that will
_The major positive feature is that Brattle Street help us tell the story of our whole city, East,

is one of our cityos olpbast tNHGtQUIR YT e rtThe s

HooperLee-Nichols House, which dates to history, itoés our history,
ca. 1685, is the oldest house on the street and is
also one of only two houses in the city to sur- Karen L. Davis

vive from the 17th centudy the other being

the CoopeiFrostAustin House (1681), on Lin-
naean Street. Because both the Hodyser
Nichols House and Brattle Street are so old,
and because Old Cambridge was settled more
than a century before East Cambridge, North
Cambridge, and Cambridgeport, we can use
our location to tell the story of Cambridge al-
most from its beginning in 1630.

A possible downside of our address is that
Brattle Street is associated with affluence,
leading to the perception that the Society is
wealthy. In fact, Frances Emerson left the
HooperLeeNichols House to the CHS in
1957 with an endowment of $20,000. Income g
from the endowment was intended to maintain [
the property, but it prqved inadequat_e, so the Karen Davis leading the AFour
Society has had to raise money continuallyto o ct ureo tour durin g Cambridge
preserve the house and operate it as a house  jyly 9. The tour was one of more than 25 offered

museum. In addition, funds are needed to throughout the city under the auspices of the His-

maintain and enlarge our archives and object  toric Cambridge Collaborative. Ted Hansen led

collection, as well as to produce programsand iThe British Loyalists of Brat

publications on Cambridge history. Bushnell guided a group through the Hoepee-
Nichols House.

Photos by Lewis Bushnell

A publication of the Cambridge Historical Society
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SEPTEMBER LECTURE

An Ecological View of
Cambridge
with Sam Bass Warner

Sam Bass Warner, Jr., a noted urban historian,
Boston native, and former Cantabrigian, ad-
dressed a capacity crowd at the Hoelpee-
Nichols House on September 22. The author of
many books and articles on the urban environ-
ment, Warner is probably best known for
Streetcar Suburbs: The Process of Growth in
Boston 1870190Q His most recent book is
Greater Boston: Adapting Regional Traditions
to the PresentHe is currently a visiting profes-
sor of Urban Planning and Studies at MIT.

In his lecture,
Warner addressed
growth and
change in the city
of Cambridge in
50-year seg-
ments, beginning
in 1800. He ex-
amined various
aspects of urban
life in each pe-
riodi Tevel of
industrial devel-
opment, population, health, home life, and wel-
fare of its citizens.

Sam Bass Warner, Jr.

He traced the changes in Cambridge from the
response to technological change (1i8&®50),
which he characterized as the era of the steam
engine, railroads, horses, and artisans when the
citybs population
the next period (1850), which saw the advent
of the heavy use of coal, the growth of the rail-
road network, electricity, the cook stove, in-
door bathrooms, and a public water supply.
The next period (190A950) saw the evolu-
tion of the auto industry, the telephone, radio,
cinema, and the airplane. During this period,
Cambridge reached its peak population of
121,000 and was the home of many manufac-
turing businesses.

grew
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I't was also the era of
and a large influx of immigrants following

World War Il. The final years of the 20th cen-
tury (1950 2000) saw the decline of manufac-
turing and the advent of biengineering, elec-
tronics, and capital investment. In this period,
the population of Cambridge declined to what

it is today, approximately 92,000 residents.

Throughout his remarks, Warner returned to
the subject of quality of life for Cambridge
citizens. As he put it neatly, the poor lived
downwind of the smoke. For those who some-
times yearn for the Good Old Days, he recalled
that in 1850, when 5,000 horses were stabled
in Cambridge, there was plenty of manure, and
hardworking men and women were lucky to
get one bath a week with hot water. Through-
out the 19th century, there was general over-
crowding, the quality of food was poor, and
tuberculosis was rampant.

Housing development and industry boosted the
city in the last half of the 20th century but,
Warner pointed out, robbed the city of virtually
all open space save Fresh Pond and Danehy
Park. The ubiquitous automobile meant that
children lost the use of city streets, and{wo
lane roads have proved barely capable of han-
dling the eveibuilding traffic.

While in general, health, education, and hous-
ing improved for the less well off, Warner re-
marked that the United States remains the rich-
est and the most unequal country in the world.

New health problems, stress, depression, lack
of sleep, and poor nutrition are some of the
21st centuryb6s chal
génfly @HBIlergind*his Qsteﬁeps to %&sm@ro 0;
how they might address the growing disparity
between the rich and poor.

Daphne Abeel

We are grateful to Professor Warner for giving
a copy of his paper to the Cambridge Histori-
cal Society. We also thank the Red House Res-
taurant in Harvard Square for providing excel-
lent refreshments after the lecture.

A publication of the Cambridge Historical Society
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AUGUST RIVER CRUISE Entrants line up for the start by the MIT boat-

Sculling on the Charles house, and the ordeut-of-chaos process is a
sight to behgld, MacMahon said. Crossing the

wi t h DO ATr c Yy M asGrifdlice i Ny ddmputer controlled, as is
the finish, marked by a pole near Herter Park
A lifelong passion for sculling (two oars) and on the Brighton side of the river. MacMahon
rowing (one oar) led one man and a few friends
to organize the Head of the Charles Regatta in
1965. That very same ma S
hon, described the history of that event, and the
perils of the challenging course, during the an-
nual CHS river cruise on August 10 aboard the
Henry Longfellow

Regatta enthusiasts may finally understand

what is going on during this 4@arold annual
Cambridge fall -idet20avag:a
plusminute, 30plusstrokeperminute race,

that now welcomes at least 7,000 rowers, 24
events (48, when you count the equal male

female split), and a crowd of more than

250,000 spectators, according to MacMahon, D6Arcy MacMahon, a founder o
who gets the crowd figures from municipal the Charles Regatta, speaking to members and
authorities. guests at on the Annual Charles River Cruise

Photo by Lewis Bushnell

Besides describing precisely how the rowers

negotiate the tricky curves and arched bridges sa|d the trickiest part of the race 'S near the

along the course, MacMahon recounted the I ot Br ![ dg ed. h 0s ttlh e las
hi story of what is :€s¢nd§|gn ch)wd&ge”erflarﬁéos‘earges
twoday sculling corﬁpetltcf%ﬁa ec‘llsfe/fai1 §goalo t ha

who raced with the Belmont Hill varsity and
was captain of the University of Pennsylvania
varsity lightweight crew and a few friends
from the Cambridge Boat Club attracted 90
boats t o t hRdawingMagaziset
wrote that weob6d attract El\\lgwthee e‘ﬁ%"?q'r%c@ro“ hl%yﬂ%egt [

said MacMahon, and from then on, growth was fo rt e Enwronment a nonprof nature conser-
exponential. vation and education center in Dartmouth,

MacMahon maintains his enthusiasm for row-
ing and river conservation.

turn somethlng into victoy not gettlng SICk
in the boat, -maWetnyy oneds
not to talk so much about

Now rowing clubs must belong to United

States Rowing, a sports governing association,
in order to enter regatta events of four or more
to a boat. Singles and doubles may belong but . L .
can also get in by lottery. Participants from the the conservation activities of the Charles River

Conservancy, presented by John Page, chief
year before are guaranteed a place if they come : .
in within 5 percent of erwténgqﬁlceﬁq{ﬁhenCé?C.times_ nltos

more complicated than t
but thatdés a way to unT*(‘F rpe F&'%"ﬂawﬁ'
ol?erz ff\n 23 dF;

The eveningds program was
by updates on the Charles River parklands and

i

AOnly the entry committoré wyvvgf{o%rﬂr

it, o but it wor ks. New entrants are hos é( a
draw. el Oo rier

A puunvauull Ul uic valliviiuyc 1 iwiival ouvicLy
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Churches Reborn

_ The Harvard Street Lutheran Church, at 321
(continued from page 1)

Harvard St., built in 1911, retained its square
to Jos® Mateoos Ball et PYANIsigs iqueryhen copdpryinjums vere
into a stateof-the-art dance studio and 25@at attached fo the original structure In '
theated with provisions for the church to hold

Sunday services. St . Hedwi gés Church, at 99

in 1939 and converted to condominiums in

Allen Street lasted as a religious site for just 20 1999.

years. The 1851 Congregational church burned
in 1865. When rebuilt three years later, it was -.
fiin fellowshipd with thezw
tion;but Universalists soon gained the upper :
hand and moved to a more prominent location
on what is now Massachusetts Avenue, just
beyond Porter Square, in 1874. That structure
boasted an imposing tower, but it was toppled
in the 1954 hurricane and the building was de-
molished. Back on Allen Street, the church
structure became tenements, then was con-
verted to condominiums in 1995.

i a-

The longestasting site before nonreligious
reuse is at Third and Thorndike streets, built in
1827 in the Federal style for a Unitarian con- -
gregatio® and facing the original Bulfinch The Blessed Sacrament Church awaits
courthouse built a dozen years earlier. Later an conversion to condominiums.
Episcopal mission, then a Polish National Photo by Lewis Bushnell

gggrlch, itwas converted to higind condos in Still in the planning stage is Blessed Sacrament

Church, on Pearl Street. With its associated
buildings, including the building used for a
number of years by the Cambridgeport School,
it will be the largest church reuse in Cam-
bridged but certainly not the last.

The brick structure at 102 Howard St. was

built for the Jewish Congregation Yavna in
1919 and was later a Bethel Gospel Hall. For
some 25 years before his retirement in 1995,
the renowned harpsichord maker Eric Herz had
his workshop there. It is currently owned by

the Gurdjieff Society of Massachusetts, which

uses it for meetings and other events. CHS Garden on PBS
Five other 20tkcentury religious structures Viewers of The Victory Garden on June 18 saw a _
wered or are beind converted to housing. familiar venue, the Cambridge

front garden. It had been filmed earlier in the spring

when its crabapple trees and tulips were in full

bloom. One hundred tall white tulips had been

planted the previous autumn to help celebrate the? N d

Societybs centennial year.
Shelagh Hadley

Beth Israel Synagogue, at 238 Columbia
Street , was converted
condominiums in 1981.

St . Patrickods Church,

Streets, along with its rectory and associated The Society is grateful to Shelagh and the Cam-
buildings, was converted to residential use by bridge Plant and Garden Club for taking such fine
the nonprofit Jusé-Start Corporation in 1992 care of the HoopeteeNichols House grounds.

1993.
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Rindge Alumni Athletic
Photos Given to CHS

by Stephen Surette

Recognizing the passage of years, members of
the Rindge Alumni Association compiled a
collection of athletic team photos prior to

1938, leading up to a celebration of the 50th
anniversary of the founding of the Cambridge
Manual Training School in 1888.

Later renamed the Rindge Manual Training
School in honor of its founder, Frederick Hast-
ings Rindge, the school joined the former
Cambridge Latin School as one of the earliest
local schools to participate in formal athletic
competitions. Beginning with football and
baseball, other sports such as crew, basketball,
ice polo/hockey, and track were added during
the 1890s.

The Cambridge Manual Tramlng School base-
ball team in the 1890s.

The Rindge Sports Team Photo Collection,
consisting of many pictures dating from 1893,
was given to the Cambridge Historical Society
in 2004. Each picture has been carefully la-

The Newetowne Chroniclé/

The 50th anniversary commemorative book
credits Charles McCue (CMTS 1891), Paul
Hillery (RTS 1913), Dr. George White (RTS
1915), and longtime teacher Henry C. Lynch
for initiating a wide search for the old photos
and other memorabilia so that the alumni and
the students would reap pleasure and prestige
from a trophy room, where might be assembled
treasures and trophies won by the athletic
teams.

The Rindge basketball team in 1928.

The Rindge Alumni Association is believed to
be the oldest operating high school reunion
group, and it will hold its 110th reunion in No-
vember 2005. The RAA maintains an excellent
trophy display in the Ted Darling Conference
Room at the Rindge School of Technical Arts,
located at CRLS. The photo collection, which
puts faces on the trophies, will be well cared
for by the CHS.

Stephen Surette recently retired from the Cam-
bridge School Department, having taught at the
Rindge Technical School and Cambridge Rindge &
Latin School for 36 years. His lorgjanding inter-

est in the history of Cambridge and its schools

beled with the names of the individual players prompted him to compile fANotabl
and coaches. The framed pictures were dis- Allumni o (2004), 0 fAQambridge Foc
2004, 0 and other athletic recor

played in the Charles F. McCue Trophy Room
in the old Rindge Tech until 1976. After a ma-
jor reconstruction of the building, the collec-
tion resurfaced in 1981 at the new Cambridge
Rindge & Latin School, where it remained on
display until recent years.

received the Elijah Corlett Award for producing a
350th anniversary video history of the school.

The CHS wishes to thank Steve for arranging this
donation.

A publication of the Cambridge Historical Society



Fall 2005

Our Centennial Year

FROMTHE LIBRARY AND ARCHIVE

Mark Time

by Mark Vassar

To continue our explanation of the work of an
archivist, this column focuses on acquisitions.
Once an archivist has appraised a collection
and determined that it has potential research
value, he or she will begin the formal acquisi-
tion process in which the repository, through a
donor agreement, will gain both physical and
intellectual custody of the collection. It is here
that the donor might impose restrictions to pre-
serve privacy.

While this process seems straightforward and
functions well for large repositories, small ones
such as CHS face many challenges in acquiring
new materials. For example, as happens with
many local historical societies, individuals of-
ten simply mail donations without providing
sufficient contact details. This prevents CHS
from obtaining background information about
the material and from completing the donor
agreement, which formally transfers ownership
of the material to the repository.

Small repositories often face competition from
larger ones, which are able to purchase collec-
tions from donors. Many historical societies,
such as CHS, have limited funding and must
depend on donations of collections from fami-
lies and individuals, clubs and organizations,
and small local businesses.

Finally, with the explosion of online auction
sites such as eBay, many people simply sell
materials or collections to the highest bidder.
These items are sometimes purchased by col-
lecting archives, but more often are bought by
private collectors, effectively limiting public
access to such materials.

While CHS is dedicated to collecting and pre-
serving Cambridge history, all of these factors
affect our ability to carry out this mission.

While we continue to receive such collections
as the Rindge athletic photographs (see page
7), donations have become less frequent over

The Newetowne Chronicl8/

the years. CHS members can help by making
donations, as well as through their relation-
ships with other residents and their connections
to local clubs and organizations. By encourag-
ing others to donate documents and photo-
graphs to us, members will have an impact on
the preservation of Cambridge history.

This postcard of storm damage on Mt. Auburn Street in
1938 is one of several donated to our archives by CHS
member Harriet Provine.

Any Questions
By Thel ma OO6Brien

A researcher from the University of Virginia
requested some information on the Charles
Eliot Norton family; in particular, she was in-
terested in Sar a
any of her correspondence, and any photo-
graphs of her as well. We did find a photo-
graph, a copy of which we duly dispatched, but
no correspondence. What we did run across (in
the BullCurtis Collection was this intriguing
letter from Charles Eliot Norton, written on
February 25, 1885, to Mrs. Ole (Sara Thorpe)
Bull, who was then renting EImwood (33 EIm-
wood Ave.) from James Russell Lowell, whose
family had owned it for two generations.

A publication of the Cambridge Historical Society
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